CITY OF MEDINA
AGENDA FOR COUNCIL MEETING

September 23, 2024
Medina City Hall — Council Rotunda
7:30 p.m.
Call to Order.
Roll Call.

Reading of minutes. (September 9, 2024)

Reports of standing committees.

Requests for council action.

Reports of municipal officers.

Notices, communications and petitions,

Liquor Permit:
Not to object to the transfer of a C1 and C2 permit from Jammrs Corp, dba 7-Eleven, 1050 N. Court to
7-Eleven Inc. a Texas Corporation, 1050 N. Court Street.

Unfinished business.

Ord. 146-24

An Ordinance amending the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio by the addition of a new
Chapter 164, Transient Lodging Tax.

(THIRD READING)

Introduction of visitors.
(speakers limited to 5 min.)

Skip Sipos - Executive Director, Medina Metropolitan Housing Authority

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions.

Motion to suspend the Rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and resolutions: Ord.
170-24, Ord. 171-24, Ord. 172-24, Ord. 173-24, Res. 174-24, Ord. 175-24, Ord. 176-24, Ord. 177-24,
Ord. 178-24

Ord. 170-24
An Ordinance authorizing the Finance Director to waive certain uncollectible utility accounts.



Medina City Council
September 23, 2024

Ord. 171-24

An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of a security trailer from i2¢c Technologies for the Police
Department.

Ord. 172-24
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to rescind Ordinance No. 92-24, passed May 13, 2024, relative to
the Job Creation Grant Agreement for Sandridge Food Corporation.

Ord. 173-24
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to solicit Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) for drug screening and
associated professional services for the employees of the City of Medina.

Res. 174-24
A Resolution authorizing the filing of a grant application for safety funds with the Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT) relative to the installation of bump outs at certain locations around the Square.

Ord. 175-24
An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of five (5) 2024 Ford Explorers, including upfitting from Hall
Public Safety, from Montrose Ford for the Police Department.

Ord. 176-24
An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a Ground Lease between the City of Medina and
University Hospitals Health System, Inc. for Helicopter Crew Site and Ancillary Single T-Hangar space.

Ord. 177-24

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 190-23, passed November 28, 2023. (Amendments to 2024
Budget)

Ord. 178-24

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 119-24, passed June 10, 2024 relative to the expenditure to
Rogue Fitness (dba Coulter Ventures LI1.C).
(emergency clause requested)

Council comments.

Adjournment.



MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
Monday, September 9, 2024

Call to Order:

Medina City Council met in regular session on Monday, September 9, 2024 at Medina City Hall.
The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by President of Council John M. Coyne IIl, who led
in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Bench dedication to honor C.B. McClure who served as the Mayor of Medina from 1954 to 1957.

Roll Call:
The roll was called with the following members of Council present: D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N.
DiSalvo, P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Also present were the following members of the Administration: Mayor Hanwell, Greg Huber,
Keith Dirham, Nino Piccoli, Patrick Patton, Lt. Marcum, Chief Walters, Dan Gladish, Kimberly
Marshall and Andrew Dutton.

Minutes:

Mr. Shields moved that the minutes from the regular meeting on Monday August 26, 2024, as
prepared and submitted by the Clerk be approved, seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll was called
and passed with the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson.

Reports of Standing Committees:

Finance Committee: Mr. Coyne stated the Finance Committee met prior to Council this evening
and the agenda is one of the longest agendas that we have had since break.

Public Properties Committee: Mr. Shields had no report.

Health, Safety & Sanitation Committee: Mr. Simpson had no report.

Special Legislation Committee: Mr. Rose had no report.

Streets & Sidewalks Committee: Ms. Haire was absent.

Water & Utilities Committee: Ms. Hazeltine was absent.

Emerging Technologies Committee: Ms. DiSalvo stated they are contemplating having their next
meeting sometime in October.

Requests for Council Action:
Finance Committee

24-181-9/9 — Waiver of Uncollectible Accounts

24-182-9/9 — Purchase Security Trailer from i2¢ Technologies — Police Dept.
24-183-9/9 — Rescind Ord. 92-24, JCG 26 - Sandridge Food Corp.
24-184-9/9 — Exp. to Technology Engineering ~ Email — Muni Court & City
24-185-9/9 — RFP’s - Drug Screening

24-186-9/9 - Grant Application — ODOT — Bump Outs

24-187-9/9 — 2024 Police Vehicle Purchase —~ Montrose Ford (5 vehicles)



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

24-188-9/9 — Ground Lease w/ University Hospitals — Airport
24-189-9/9 — Ratify 1976 Agreement w/ County Commissioners
24-190-9/9 — Purchase 6 Stryker ballistic shields — Pro-Tech Sales

Reports of Municipal Officers:

Dennis Hanwell, Mayor,
A. State of City was presented to council tonight and will be presented to the Chamber

tomorrow
at 11:30 a.m. at Williams on the Lake.

B. 9/11 Memorial Ceremony will be at the Memorial on south side of Medina Fire Station
1 on Wednesday, September 11, 2024 at 9:50 a.m.

C. Main Street Medina will hold the annual Fall Fest on Public Square on Saturday,
September 28, 2024 from 10 am. - 2 pm. For further details go to
www.mainstreetmedina.com

Keith Dirham, Finance Director, had no report.

Greg Huber, Law Department, had no report.

Kimberly Marshall, Economic Development Director, Kimberly Marshall stated Friday,
September 13 there will be a ribbon cutting dedication for the lactation pod at the Medina County
District Library at 1p.m. The Legacy Hotel PACE financing closed last week Wednesday.

Lt. Marcum, Police Department, had no report.

Sgt. Zaremba, IT Department, had no report.

Chief Walters, Fire Department, had no report.

Jansen Wehrley, Parks and Recreation Director, was absent.

Cindy Lastuka, Municipal Court, had no report.

Dan Gladish, Building Official, had no report.

Nino Piccoli, Service Director, had no report.

Patrick Patton, City Engineer, had no report.

Andrew Dutton, Planning and Community Development Director, had no report.

Notices, communications and petitions;
There were none.




Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Unfinished Business:

Ord. 146-24

An Ordinance amending the Codified Ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio by the
addition of a new Chapter 164, Transient Lodging Tax. Mr. Shields moved to present Ord.
146-24 be presented for a second reading tonight and put before council for consideration,
seconded by Mr. Simpson.

Mr. Rose stated they will need to amend paragraph 164.99, Section A with regard to taxes as it
refers to income taxes and needs modified to Lodging Taxes. Section B, there is a sentence
needing to be removed; if the person that violates a crime is a city employee in any way, shape or
form.

Mr. Huber stated Stan Scheetz brought to his attention there is a code section he is looking at that
may require we put half of this tax toward the Convention and Visitor’s Bureau and he will look
into that.

Intreduction of Visitors:
There were none.

Introduction and consideration of ordinances and resolutions

Mr. Shields moved to suspend the rules requiring three readings on the following ordinances and
resolutions, seconded by Mr. Simpson: Ord. 148-24, Res. 149-24, Res. 150-24, Res. 151-24, Res.
152-24, Res. 153-24, Ord. 154-24, Ord. 155-24, Ord. 156-24, Ord. 157-24, Ord. 158-24, Ord. 159-
24, Ord. 160-24, Ord. 161-24, Ord. 162-24, Ord. 163-24, Ord. 164-24, Ord. 165-24, Ord. 166-24,
Ord. 167-24, Ord. 168-24, Ord. 169-24. Motion passed with the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose,
J. Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne,

Ord. 148-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Job Creation Grant Payment of $53,491.89 to Carlisle Brake
& Friction, aka Friction Products for Tax Year 2023. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 148-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Kimberly stated this if for two
expansion projects. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 148-24 passed by the yea
votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson.

Res. 149-24

A Resolution accepting the grant award from the Ohio Department of Mental Health &
Addiction Services Specialized Docket Subsidy Project Funding Grant for the Medina
Municipal Court Veteran’s Treatment Court. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 149-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Cindy Lastuka stated this is a grant
received every year. The amount is $75,000. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No.
149-24 passed by the yea votes of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.

Res. 150-24
A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to file an application for grant assistance with the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, U.S, Department of Justice for the Edward Byrne Justice

3



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Assistance Grant (JAG) Program for the Police Department. Mr. Shields moved for the
adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 150-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Lt. Marcum stated this
is to cover the cost of cancer screenings for employees, the total amount is $27,258.00. The roll
was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 150-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D.
Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose

Res. 151-24

A Resolution accepting the ARPA Grant award from the Medina County Board of
Developmental Disabilities for the Medina Municipal Court. Mr. Shields moved for the
adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 151-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Cindy stated they will
put in an adult changing table in the new 1969 Courthouse. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 151-24 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo,
P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Res. 152-24

A Resolution authorizing the filing of an Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
Targeted Brownfield Assessment Grant application for the environmental assessments of the
former Yost Sunoco Site located at 426 W, Liberty Street. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption
of Ordinance/Resolution No. 152-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Kimberly stated this is to apply
and if the grant is approved the entire cost will be picked up by the State of Ohio. The roll was
called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 152-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P.
Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson.

Res. 153-24

A Resolution authorizing the Mayor to file and application for the Ohio Cybersecurity Grant
to assist with purchases of security software and services to boost preparedness and resilience
of cybersecurity attacks. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 153-
24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Darin Zaremba stated this is for a $20,000 grant from the State of
Ohio. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 153-24 passed by the yea votes of N,
DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, and I. Coyne.

Ord. 154-24

An Ordinance amending Section 31.05 and 31.07 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the
City of Medina, Ohio relative to the Payroll Clerk and approving the new Payroll Clerk job
description. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 154-24, seconded
by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution
No. 154-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Dirham stated the emergency clause is needed due to
this getting hung up over a scheduling change with Civil Service. This is to increase the pay for
the payroll clerk to be competitive with other cities in the area. The roll was called on adding the
emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne,
and N. DiSalvo. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 154-24 passed by the yea votes
of J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose.

Ord. 155-24
An Ordinance amending Section 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of

4



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Medina, Ohio relative to the Account Clerk II in the Service Department. Mr. Shields moved
for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 155-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Piccoli
explained this was a position in service but was eliminated. Full time position is needed to be
consistent for customer service. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 155-24 passed
by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Ord. 156-24

An Ordinance amending Section 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of the City of
Medina, Ohio relative to the Motor Equipment Operators in the Street Department. Mr.
Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 156-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Nino stated the need is there with respect to an additional motor equipment operator. The roll was
called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 156-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P.
Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson.

Ord. 157-24

An Ordinance amending Sections 31.02(B)(8) and 31.05 of the Salaries and Benefits Code of
the City of Medina, Ohio relative to the Sanitation Department. Mr. Shields moved for the
adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 157-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Nino stated they’ve
been running with part-time labor for a long time. Wanting to eliminate 3 part-time positions that
they don’t even use. There are two full- time employees in other departments that transferred over
to Sanitation on paper. This will clean that up, we don’t have any part-timers in reserve. The roll
was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 157-24 passed by the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose,
J. Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.

Ord. 158-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to advertise for the auction, sale or disposal of City
equipment and vehicles no longer in use. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 158-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Piccoli stated this is our annual
city auction and is scheduled for October 26", 2024 at 10 a.m. at the City Garage located at 781
W. Smith Road. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 158-24 passed by the yea votes
of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.

Ord. 159-24

An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of two (2) portable traffic signals from A & A Safety,
Inc. for the Service/Street Departments. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 159-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Piccoli stated in April they
applied for a grant and were successful with $40,000.00. Looking at two portable trailer mounted
traffic signals. We were able to secure this with a state vendor for $63,100.00. The grant will cover
$40,000.00 and the city obligation is the remainder of $23,100.00. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 159-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N.
DiSalvo, and P. Rose

Ord. 166-24
An Ordinance authorizing the purchase of one (1) 2024 Ford F150 pickup truck from
Montrose Ford for the Sanitation Department. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of

5



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Ordinance/Resolution No. 160-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 160-24 passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo,
R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Ord. 161-24

An Ordinance authorizing the expenditure to MNJ Technologies for computer, laptop and
monitor upgrades for various departments. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 161-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the
emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution No. 161-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Darin
Zaremba stated this is for various departments computer laptop and monitor upgrades. Need the
emergency clause because they give them a 30-day quote on it even though it is state bids. The
roll was called on adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of J. Coyne, N.
DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No.
161-24 passed by the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne,

Ord. 162-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to advertise for competitive bids and to award a
contract to the successful bidder for the Airport Hangar Apron Improvements Project. Mr.
Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 162-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Mr. Patton stated this project will replace the pavement on the west side of the hangars out at the
airport. $180,000.00 of this is being paid through the ARPA Funds. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 162-24 passed by the yea votes of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J.
Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.

Ord. 163-24

An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 95-23, passed May 22, 2023, relative to the
agreement with JamGIS for Geographic Information Systems (GIS) services. Mr. Shields
moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 163-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Asking
to increase the amount by $2,750.00 to enhance GIS capabilities by adding Eagle View. The roll
was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 163-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D.
Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, and P. Rose

Ord. 164-24

An Ordinance establishing a Celebrations Fund (#172).

Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 164-24, seconded by Mr.
Simpson. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 164-24 passed by the yea votes of D.
Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, and J. Shields.

Ord. 165-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Finance Director to make certain fund transfers.

Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 165-24, seconded by Mr,
Simpson. Keith stated this is to move money to the new fund. The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 165-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J.
Shields, and D. Simpson.



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Ord. 166-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into the Standard Form of Agreement between
the City of Medina and the Ruhlin Company as Constructor for the renovation of the 1969
Former Medina County Courthouse Building to house the Medina Municipal Court. Mr.
Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 166-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson.
Mr. Shields stated this ordinance needs to be amended to add the funding information. Mr. Coyne
stated they are going to split the information from #301, half the cost will come from that, and then
the Special Projects Fund at the Court will be the other 50% of the cost under this contract. Mayor
Hanwell stated the total is $38,335.00 so it would be $19,167.50 from #169-0716-54412 and the
same amount out of #301-0716-54412. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 166-24
passed by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, R. Haire, J. Hazeltine, P. Rose, and
J. Shields. The roll was called on the adoption of the ordinance as amended and passed by the yea
votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.

Ord. 167-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Test Purchase Agreement with Grail,
Inc. to participate in the Galleri Multi-Cancer Early Detection Screenings for the City of
Medina Firefighters. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No. 167-24,
seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the emergency clause be added to
Ordinance/Resolution No. 167-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Chief Walters stated this is for
Firefighter cancer screenings. The emergency clause is so that they can secure an opening for
scheduling. The roll was called on adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes
of P. Rose, J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, and N. DiSalvo.  The roll was called and
Ordinance/Resolution No. 167-24 passed by the yea votes of J. Shields, D. Simpson, J. Coyne, N.
DiSalvo, and P. Rose.

Ord. 168-24

An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to grant one (1) Utility Easement to Legacy Hotel of
Medina LLC for the Legacy Hotel Project. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of
Ordinance/Resolution No. 168-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Shields moved that the
emergency clause be added to Ordinance/Resolution No. 168-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr.
Patton stated this will allow them to install certain utilities as water, power and storm sewer within
the city’s property parking lot. Emergency is requested as to not hold up the construction. The roll
was called on adding the emergency clause and was approved by the yea votes of D. Simpson, J.
Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, and J. Shields. The roll was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. -
24 passed by the yea votes of J. Coyne, N. DiSalvo, P. Rose, J. Shields, and D. Simpson.

Ord. 169-24

An Ordinance accepting a Dedication of a portion of Mast Parkway and Easement
Dedication and Vacation Plat. Mr. Shields moved for the adoption of Ordinance/Resolution No.
169-24, seconded by Mr. Simpson. Mr. Dutton stated this is to accept .0628 acres at the center of
Mass Parkway that is currently a grass area. The dedication will allow us to use it for a right-of-
way essentially making Mass Parkway a cul-de-sac with one access to the rear of Acme. The roll
was called and Ordinance/Resolution No. 169-24 passed by the yea votes of N. DiSalvo, P. Rose,
J. Shields, D. Simpson, and J. Coyne.



Medina City Council
September 9, 2024

Council comments
Mr. Simpson stated there are going to be a lot of political discussions over the next few months,

just remember to be kind to one another.

Mrs. DiSalvo reminded the public that the season for bow hunting starts on September 28" and
encourages anyone who wants to get a license to fill out your paperwork.

Mr. Coyne stated there have been 84 deer that have been road kill pick ups.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the City Council meeting adjourned at 8:14p.m.

Kathy Patton, Clerk of Council

John M. Coyne, 111, President of Council



QHIO DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
NOTICE TO LEGISLATIVE 8806 TUSSING ROAD, P.O. BOX 4005

AUTHORITY REYNOLDSBURG, OHIO 43068-3005
(6141644-2360 FAX(614)844-3166

80036070390 TRFO
PEAMIT NUMBE
10]01m3023
08 |16 2024

e EILING QATE

Cl C2
B SSER ]

52 077 F31976

TAX RISTRICT. RELEIPT N

EVE}émIINC A TEXAS CORPORATION
NA OHIO 44256

FROM 09,/04/2024
4234965 JAMMRS

CORP
2 e DBA 7 ELEVEN 36239a
10 |01 [2023 1050 N COURT

ssiup Date BEDINA OHIO 44256
08 |16 |2024

EUNG DATE

Cl c2

e ]
52 1977 l
TaX DISTRICT REGEIRT. NG,

CLE T

maien 09/04/2024

RESPONSES MUST BE POSTMARKED NO LATER THAN. 10/07/2024

IMPORTANT NOTICE

PLEASE COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS EORM TO THE DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL
WHETHER OR NOT THERE IS A REQUEST FOR A HEARING.

REFER TO THIS NUMBER IN ALL INQUIRIES C TRFO 8003607-0330

(TRANSACTION & NUMBER}

MUST MARK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING)

WE REQUEST A HEARING ON THE ADVISABILITY OF ISSUING THE PERMIT AND REQUEST THAT
THE HEARING BE HELD 1IN OUR COUNTY SEAT. 1IN COLUMBUS.

WE DO NOT REQUEST A HEARING. [
DID YOU MARK A BOX? F NOT, THIS WILL BE CONSIDERED A LATE RESPONSE.

PLEASE SIGN BELOW AND MARK THE APPROPRIATE BOX INDICATING YOUR TITLE:

(Signature) (Tit!e}-f:] Clerk of County Commissicner {Date)
] Clerk of City Council
[T] Township Fiscat Officer

CLERK OF MEDINA CITY COUNCIL
132 NORTH ELMWOOD AVENUE
MEDINA OHIC 44256

oLc 4052 REV. 03/03



RCA 22-259-11/28

ORDINANCE NO. 146-24

AN  ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODIFIED
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, BY THE
ADDITION OF A NEW CHAPTER 164, TRANSIENT
LODGING TAX.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

SEC. 1: That the codified ordinances of the City of Medina, Ohio shall be amended by the
adoption of a new Chapter 164, relative to establishing a transient lodging tax.

SEC. 2: That the new Chapter 164 shall read as follows:

CHAPTER 164
Transient Lodging Tax

164.01 DEFINITIONS.

As used in this chapter, the following definitions shall apply:

{a) “Hotel”: Every establishment kept, used, maintained, advertised, or held out to the public to
be a place where sleeping accommodations are offered to guests in which sixteen (16) or more
rooms are used for accommodation or as otherwise defined in Ohio R.C. 5739.01(M) or is
hereinafter amended by the General Assembly.

(b) “Transient guests™: As defined in Ohio R.C. 5739.01(N) as it now exists or is hereinafter
amended by the General Assembly.

(¢} “Occupancy”: The use or possession, or the right to use or possession, of any room or rooms
or space or portion thereof in any hotel or motel, for dwelling, lodging or sleeping purposes. The
use or possession or right to use or possess any room or any suite of connecting rooms as office
space, banquet or private dining rooms, or exhibit, sample or display space shall not be
considered occupancy within the meaning of this definition unless the person exercising
occupancy uses or possesses or has the right to use or possess, all or any portion of such room or
suite of rooms for dwelling, lodging or sleeping purposes.

164.02 LEVY.

There is hereby levied an excise tax at the rate of three percent (3%) on all transactions within
the City of Medina by which lodging is furnished by a hotel to transient guests. The tax shall be
3% of the rent paid or to be paid by the transient guest for the uses set forth in the definitions in
164.01 hereinabove. The tax shall apply and be due at the time the accommodations are
furnished, regardless of the time when the rent is paid.

164.03 USE.

Fifty percent (50%) of the revenue from the tax levied pursuant to this ordinance shall be
deposited in a separate fund, which shall be spent to make contributions to the convention and
visitors' bureaus operating within Medina County.

The remaining fifty percent (50%) of the revenue derived from this tax shall be deposited into
the City of Medina General Fund.

Ord. 146-24



164.04 COLLECTION.

Every hotel shall collect the tax herein levied commencing on the date of adoption of this
ordinance and make a return and payment to the City of Medina Director of Finance on forms
supplied by the Department of Finance no later than January 31, April 30, July 31 and October
31 for the preceding quarter.

164.05 RULES AND REGULATIONS.

The Department of Finance shall establish rules and regulations necessary to provide for the
administration of said tax including, but not limited to, the proper notification to all hotels and a
consistent reporting format.

164.06 PENALTIES AND INTEREST.

(A) Original delinquency. Any operator who fails to remit any tax imposed by this subchapter
within the time required shall pay a penalty equal to 10% of the amount of the tax, in addition to
the tax,

(B) Continued delinguency. Any operator who fails to remit any delinquent tax on or before a
period of 30 days following the date on which the tax first became delinquent shall pay a second
delinquency penalty equal to 10% of the amount of the tax and previous penalty in addition to
the tax and the 10% penalty first imposed. An additional penalty equal to 10% of the total tax
and penalty of the previous 30-day period shall be added for each successive 30-day period that
the operator remains delinquent.

(C) Fraud. 1f the Tax Administrator determines that the nonpayment of any remittance due
under this subchapter is due to fraud, a penalty equal to 25% of the amount of the tax shall be
added thereto in addition to penalties stated in divisions (A) and (B) hereof.

(D) Interest. In addition to the previous penalties imposed, any operator who fails to remit any
tax imposed by this subchapter shall pay interest at the rate of %% per month, or fraction thereof,
on the amount of the tax, exclusive of penalties, from the date on which the remittance first
became delinquent until paid.

(E) Penalties during pendency of hearing or appeal. No penalty provided under this subchapter
shall be imposed during the pendency of any hearing provided for in § 34.64, nor during the
pendency of any appeal to the Board of Review provided for in § 34.64.

('65 Code, § 732.10)

164.99 PENALTY.
(A) Whoever violates Chapter 164 by failing to remit City of Medina lodging taxes, shall be
guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree and shall be subject to a fine of not more than $1,000
or imprisonment for a term of up to six months, or both.
(B) Any person who discloses information received from the Internal Revenue Service in
violation of Federal law shall be guilty of a felony of the fifth degree and shall be subject to a
fine of not more than $5,000 plus the costs of prosecution, or imprisonment for a term not
exceeding five years, or both. If the individual that commits the violation is an employee, or
official, of the City of Medina, the individual is subject to discharge from employment or
dismissal from office.
(C) Each instance of access or disclosure in violation of Federal law constitutes a separate
offense.
(D) If not otherwise specified herein, no person shall:
(1) Fail, neglect or refuse to make any return or declaration required by this chapter;
(2) File any incomplete or false return;
(3) Fail, neglect or refuse to pay the tax, penalties or interest imposed by this chapter;
(4) Refuse to permit the Tax Administrator or any duly authorized agent or employee to

Ord. 146-24



examine his books, records, papers and federal and state income tax returns relating to the
income or net profits of a taxpayer;,

(5) Fail to appear before the Tax Administrator and to produce his books, records, papers
or

federal and state income tax returns relating to the income or net profits of a taxpayer
upon order or subpoena of the Tax Administrator;

(6) Refuse to disclose to the Tax Administrator any information with respect to the
income or

net profits of a taxpayer;

(7) Fail to comply with the provisions of this chapter or any order or subpoena of the Tax
Administrator authorized hereby;

(8) Give to an employer false information as to his true name, correct social security
number,

and residence address, or fail to promptly notify an employer of any change in residence
address and date thereof’

(9) Attempt to do anything whatsoever to avoid the payment of the whole or any part of
the

tax, penalties or interest imposed by this chapter.

(E) Any person who violates any of the provisions of Federal law shall be subject to the penalties

provided for by Federal law.

(F) Whoever violates Chapter 164 1s guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree and shall be
imprisoned for not more than six months and shall be fined not more than $1,000.

(G) Whoever violates any of the provisions of Chapter 164 for which no penalty is otherwise
provided shall be subject to the penalty as provided in Chapter 164.

SEC. 3: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning

and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees
that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in

compliance with the law.

SEC. 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed
by law.
PASSED: SIGNED:
President of Council Pro-Tem
ATTEST: APPROVED:
Deputy Clerk of Council
SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

1%t Reading: 8/26/24
2% Reading: 9/9/24
3™ Reading: 9/23/24

Ord. 146-24



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 214-181-9/9

ORDINANCE NO. 170-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE
DIRECTOR TO WAIVE CERTAIN UNCOLLECTIBLE
UTILITY ACCOUNTS.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to waive certain utility accounts that
are deemed to be uncollectible as identified on Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

That the Board of Control is hereby authorized to accept partial payment or waive
payment in lieu of full payment for those accounts.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
faw.

SIGNED:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 170-24



MAME
2023 Shariff Sale:
2023 Sheriff Sale

2033 Bankruptey

ACCOUNY
G0211-001 [AVON, PENNY}

CO766-G01 [SPOONER, THOMAS)

09354-001 (RITE AID COAP 40128303}

SERVICE LOCATION
408 GATES MILLS BLVD
597 5 COURT 5T

207 N COURT 5T

PARCEL 0
002813005276
002815C05328

CO2819A21364

CERTIFICATION ID
2023 Sankeuptey/Sheriff Sale
2023 Bankrugtoy/Sheriff Sale

2023 Bankeuptey/SherlH Sale

© RDH,[10-A%

CERTIFICATION TOTAL

H 40.60
$ 1131
$ 51.81
] 640,92

Rih. &

TOTAL YO WRITE OFF
5 40.50
$ 1133
$ 5191
5 641,92

5 £92.43




WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC. §:

PASSED:

RCA 24-182-9/9

ORDINANCE NO. 171-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A
SECURITY TRAILER FROM i2¢ TECHNOLOGIES FORTHE
POLICE DEPARTMENT.

In accordance with ORC 307.86, the Police Department has requested authority to
purchase a Security Trailer from i2¢ Technologies without competitive bidding or
participation in the state cooperative purchase contracts provided the purchase
consists of supplies or a replacement or supplemental part or parts for a product or
equipment owned or leased by the city, and the only source of supply for the supplies,
part, or parts is limited to a single supplier.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the purchase of an outdoor Security Trailer equipped with a 25-foot extending
mast, cellular modem, server, Axis camera, radar and license plate detection from i2¢c
Technologies, is hereby authorized for the Police Department.

That in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §5705.41(D), at the time that the
contract or order was made and at the time of execution of the Finance Director’s
certificate, sufficient funds were available or in the process of collection, to the credit
of a proper fund, properly appropriated and free from any previous encumbrance.

That the funds to cover this purchase, in the amount of $39,956.00, are available in
Account No. 166-0101-54413.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 171-24



WHEREAS:

SEC. I:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

PASSED:

RCA 24-183-9/9

ORDINANCE NO. 172-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
RESCIND ORDINANCE NO. 92-24, PASSED MAY 13, 2024,
RELATIVE TO A JOB CREATION GRANT AGREEMENT
FOR SANDRIDGE FOOD CORPORATION.

Ordinance No. 92-24, passed May 13, 2024, authorized the Mayor to enter into a Job
Creation Grant Agreement #JCG26 with Sandridge Food Corporation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor be and he is hereby authorized to rescind the authorization granted by
Ordinance No. 92-24, passed May 13, 2024, and thereby rescind the Job Creation
Grant Agreement #JCG26 with Sandridge Food Corporation.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed b
law.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 172-24



RCA 24-185-9/9

ORDINANCE NO. 173-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SOLICIT
REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (RFP'sy FOR DRUG
SCREENING AND ASSOCIATED PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF
MEDINA.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OH1O:

SEC. 1: That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to solicit Requests for Proposals
(RFP's) for drug screening and associated professional services for the employees of
the City of Medina.

SEC. 2: That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and

relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

SEC. 3: That this Ordinance shall be considered in full force and effect at the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED: SIGNED:
President of Council Pro-Tem
ATTEST: APPROVED:
Deputy Clerk of Council
SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 173-24



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 24-186-9/9

RESOLUTION NO. 174-24

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A
GRANT APPLICATION FOR SAFETY FUNDS WITH THE
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT),
RELATIVE TO THE INSTALLATION OF BUMP OUTS AT
CERTAIN LOCATIONS AROUND THE SQUARE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA,
OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to file an application for grant
assistance with (ODOT), the Ohio Department of Transportation, relative to
Safety Funds the intention to install ‘bump outs’ at certain locations around the
square to improve safety for the traveling public.

That if the Grant is awarded the Mayor is hereby authorized to accept the Grant
and complete all documentation for the implementation and administration of the
Grant.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of
this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees
that resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in
compliance with the law.

That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed
by law.

SIGNED:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Councii

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Res. 174-24



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

SEC. 5:

PASSED:

RCA 24-187-9/9
ORDINANCE NO. 175-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FIVE
(5) 2024 FORD EXPLORERS, INCLUDING UPFITTING
FROM HALLS PUBLIC SAFETY, FROM MONTROSE FORD
FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT.

In accordance with ORC 125.04 the City of Medina, Ohio requested authority to
participate in State contracts which the Department of Administrative Services has
entered into for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment and certain materials;
and

The request for participation provides for the waiving of the state and local
competitive bidding requirements and allows the City the ability to purchase from
centralized state contracts; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OBIO:

That in accordance with Ohio Revised Code §5705.41(D), at the time that the
contract or order was made and at the time of execution of the Finance Director’s
certificate, sufficient funds were available or in the process of collection, to the credit
of a proper fund, properly appropriated and free from any previous encumbrance.

That the purchase of five (5) 2024 Ford Explorers including upfitting, purchased
through the Community University & Education (C.U.E.) Purchasing Association
and Montrose Ford is hereby authorized for the Police Department.

That the funds to cover this purchase, in the amount of $283,946.00, are available as
follows, $61,000.00 (Upfit cost) in Account No. 106-0101-54413 and $222,946.00
(vehicle cost) in Account No. 106-0101-54417.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resuited in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law,

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 175-24



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC, 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

ATTEST:

RCA 24-188-9/9

ORDINANCE NO. 176-24

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE A GROUND LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF
MEDINA AND UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH
SYSTEM, INC. FOR HELICOPTER CREW SITE AND
ANCILLARY SINGLE T-HANGAR SPACE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Ground Lease between the City of
Medina, Ohio and University Hospitals Health System, Inc. as tenant for Helicopter
Crew Site and Ancillary Single T-Hangar Space.

That a copy of the Ground Lease is marked Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
faw.

SIGNED:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 176-24



GROUND LEASE

Dated: , 2024
between

CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO,
as [.andlord

and

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC.,
as Tenant

{(Helicopter Crew Site and Ancillary Single T-Hangar Space)

20707066 _6



GROUND LEASE

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
ARTICLE L.ttt b et s et e ne e s e e aeeeraseesessessesseasestsesassensessesenesemeresesneees 2
DB IOIIS . oottt et et e e e e e st s amsesne e reesseentesssseaten et esmee st enennesenssssesenessnresons 2
ARTICLE IL.........ooiiciiacs e eee et eeee e ees e eaeasestaseasess sasensansassasesssesesssessstesnsersnesnsvesseessessens 3
REIML ...t ettt et e eb a1t 4 ea e e et ear e s e ntane et tene st seaneenenneeneereeeseetseetesee s nnenns 3
Section 2.1 BaSE eI ..o eerer e v vr e s et e e et eee s a e aenta e nrenas 3
Section 2.2  Place Of PavmemtS . ..o.oooeeeeeieeeeer e eeeeeeeeeeeeen s e e esesssesrararessens 3
Section 2.3  Delinquent Payment: Handling Charges ......o.oovvveevevevevvvesissninnns 3
ARTICLE L.ttt ee e et sea s eeeesaserssn s aseaastasssess s e sssesns sanbesesesssesssemssssssessesaneens 4
L@ETIL ettt te et estreeme s e bt e aateeneeateemeese s ee et aeraseaseeensenessenes semesensreeneeseterestenessan 4
Section 3.0  TRIBAT T@IH cvooveoreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oot es st ssaresveressresssestasasessassessssenresns 4
Section 3.2 EXIEISION .ovoiiiiiiitieeeeee oot eeeeeee e e eeese seneseasesnssssessessasssnsssessons 4
ARTICLE LIV oottt teteeta s e st s e et e sae et e e e asteeeaseeseeeeenneeeeamsansesteestesesassssessesssesssnssssntossenessas 4
Ownership of Improvements; Additional IMprovements...........c.coooerreeeicinsionnserenns 4
Section4.]  Ownership of IMProvements..........ccoovvoviinieeoierre e e eseeee 4
Section 4.2 Additional Improvements..........coooooiiecieeeeecererieeieees e sesessssesesseas 4
ARTICLE YV .ottt ettt se e ree et et reesee e et 4 e eeeamesnseeereeat sasnesssesantessen s s esanersessssessenssnnn 4
Uses and Conduct 0f BUSIIESES.........oovveviiieiieeeceee s eteee e eeseeeeeteeaseseseaeerssestaanersserasrsssesassesass 4
SECHOI S PUIPDOSES. o ovveieiece e eeeeei et ectee e sene et s esaesasstessesasasssnsesssesssssetesseses 4
Section 5.2  Prohibited PUFpPOSES ..o 5
Section 5.3  No Exclusive RISHIS ....c.oovvoieeeveerieecccreeeee e me s 5
Section 5.4  NO DHSCIIHMINALON. ... .ooiiiireeteeee e ertessresrsessssrestesiserssesssees s 5
Section 5.5  Tenant’s Responsibility.........ccocooveeonrieiecriicireiieeee s 6
Section 5.6 Conduct of Business, Fle.....ocoovi oo eeseveeresereseesses eeee s 6
Section 5.7 Hazardous Materials; Indemnity........c.cooooveecieecviioneecreecrcen 6
Section 5.8  Rules and Regulations...........cocoeceicrieresriieceieenseeeesevesenns 7
ARTICLE VI .ot iestvesteee et eae st et e e esesseaetseaseeseaseseeaasans s eeseeaneetraressarasseetsarersssesansrans 7
THUPOSTHONS. .......ooviiriviiiriorice i ctsc e s s sneree s s s e e et s et aseeses et essassmessenssaensenesnsaeeserasennssensenssenas 7
Section 0.1  Payment BY Temant.......ocooovviororroieeroeeeeesveereseseeesesesessssssrsrsssseresas 7




ARTICLE VIII

ARTICLE IX

ARTICLE X1I

Section 6.2  Landlord’s ODBHEatIonS ........ccoveeeieeeeeeece et e e seesesssenseeas 7
Section 6.3 RiShE 0 COMEESE ....vovvioveeieee et ee e e s sse e rer e e sasees 7
Section 6.4  SepPArate ASSESSIIEIS .....ooiiiieeeeeeeeersereereressereseeseeseessessesessssessssens 8
Section 6.5 No Joinder in ProceedinEs .........ooveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeieeeeeer s svsresenas 8
...................................................................................................................................... 8
TEISUEBIICE. ...ttt e e e es e b ete s et s e sbeee e se st ot ensnse st e eessens s sensssansssaesssessessans 8
Section 7.1  Liability INSUFRICE ...ovccveiviriiie et s s ee e eresreere e ensannens 8
Section7.2  Insurance; Hangar Keeper’s Insurance Coverage........................ 8
Section 7.3  Public Liability INSUIANCE ......c.o.oooov e 9
Section Tid  VIORLION.....c..cooiireiniieieee ettt seeeeeee e e e see e nessesaseessns e esesnsssasnrssas 9
Section 7.5  TYDPEOIPOICIES ..c.ooooveeviiiinreeeieerere e e eereseessersereseanserensssesresesseneens 9
Section 7.6  Tenantas INSULed ....cocooveviiieieiii et sr e 9
Section 7.7  Blanket PoHCIES ........c.ooovevvvieiee e e s s snneens 9
SectioN 7.8 W aIVer .. ..ot e e e e esae et e ress s sateseseannns 9
.................................................................................................................................. 10

Services to, and Repairs and Maintenance of, the Premises...........c.cooveviveeveevniveeeninnnn, 10
Section8.1  Landlord Oblisations..........cc.c.ooviveiiiicriieie e e 10
Section 8.2  Tenant ObHGAtioNS .........c.eveeveviriei et 10
Section 83  Tenant’s Neglect .....oociiciieecieene s s renens 10
Section 8.4  Triple Nef Lease........cocovvoeieeiiieeirestciii e e s e eesrs e seseesesesssseses 10
..................................................................................................................................... 10
Compliance With LAWS ......cccocooiiiiriircrr ettt st et a e 10
Section 9.1  Tenant’s COVEMAME.......cccooivvieceetvieereresrisrsrresesieesessesserssessrassseneaes 10
Section 9.2  Right 10 Contest ........coovivoveeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereee e s e e sess s srsseas 11
....................................................................................................................................... 11
........................................................................................................................................ it
Section 101 INO LECIS ..ottt ee e e e eer st s setees e e re e e sanerans i1
Section 10.2  Discharge of Liens ..o s B
Section 103 No Lanadlord Priviy ...ooeoeeeeeeeieeeeeeeetee e e eeee s seneesess e It
..................................................................................................................................... 11

Right to Perform COVENANIS .....c.ceeceieiieecierieietceris et s tcsesessaesereereseensesesesesasesesasessssnssnss 11
Section 11.1 Landlord’s Rights as t0 INSUrance..........cooevvevevierecceiresriironne. It
Section 11.2 Landlord’s Rights as to Impositions...........ccocoveeeveeeercioveereenan 12
Section 11.3 Tenant’s Lack of THIGENCE......vovvvviereeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeee oo 12
Section 11.4  Addifional Rent.........cco.oimiiiicrcreee e 12
.................................................................................................................................... 12



ARTICLE XIHL ...ttt ettt s ene s ateessses s e eseseeeeses e s sees s s eseeseeemesseesseesesees 12
INAdemRIFICREOI -...o.oveeieeeeceer e ee e et ea et e s e s es s e e e s e e en o e os s ee s s 12
ARTICLE XTIV ottt e eseses s s e s sas s sretee s eseneseasesesanssesasasssatssssessssasasessasesssessseseses i3
Damage OF DeS GO . .......cecver ettt ee e e e e e eeees s eeeerese s aessesres e senessensas i3
Section 14.1  SubStantial............coocovvieriiieee e s e 13

Section 142 No Rellt ADBEIIEIE.......c.ocoovieveeereeeieeeeereeeeesreee e eseressaressesesessreo 13

Section 14.3  ReSIOFRLION ......cvcvieeeeeieeee e et es e st s e ereee s emr e esessoseas 13

ARTICLE XV ...ttt an ettt ee et s s e s s ean s es s s sen s e e eas s ea et sessess 13
CONAEIMMALION ...ttt s ettt bt sa s s es e s seasaeensresensastaras 13
Section 15.1 Eminent DORIAIN.......oocov oo eeee oot res s esrssssssssssseses i3

Section 15.2  SubStantial.... ...t e s et 14

Section 153  Pavment of Proceeds .....cooviivivvieeiieeee e vee s s ereessnsssnanss i4

Section 154 ReStOration ......coooveiceriioeiiieiisercre st saes s 14

Section 155 REQUCHOM . ......ccccoviiitiieorenieee oo eeet oo eeeeees e eestessseeeesssesssssesssramrons 14

SECHOT 150 INOLICE. ..ottt s e et e ee s eeee e e eeaer e e estnseeemenereesessassensas 15

ARTICLE X VI s eiser et etess st st et eas e s s s reses s es e e e an e st s s s s s sssesaessessanesensssnsssssnas 15
Conditional Limitations - Default ProviSIoms .......ovevoveeeeeeeeeeee s eeeeeeeeeeee e enesssns 15
Section 16,1 Tenant Events of Default......cccoooveivrveiivceceeiceeesee e 15

Section 16.2  Surrender of PremiSes..........cooovvieiiiercriieiorecriee e eseessesone 16

Section 16.3  Reletling ........c.ooveivieioeieieeeece e et sttt es s aaees s I6

Section 16,4 Landlord’s ReCOVEIV ......co.voieveeeee oo eeee e s e e eresessnne 16

Section 16.5 Landlord Events of Default............ccooovvivvieniniceeee e 16

Section 16.6 Remedies CurBulative.........c.cooveeeiireieciceciioncceee i 17

ARTICLE XVIL....o ittt e st ss et s aas s en s s eneseanssns s e sessans s s e samese e sses s sanes 17
Condition of Property; Quiet ERjOYIEnt............ocovvvrevvieeitiectes et seer e 17
Section 17.1 No Landlord Warranty. ..o veoeeeieeieeeeeeeee e see e vveneeeess e 17

Section 17.2 Landlord Representations.........ococoovvveenionnienseinvenseeess e, 17

ARTICLE XVIIL ...ttt e st eet et enent e e et es s esessamesssesasereessssnsssaenessssessseesoes 17
SUITERAEE O PIOHIISES ....eviveei ettt e et et eeseaee et aneseesesesseseresseessseemsesnons 17
Section 18.1  Deliverv of POSSESSI0M........coiiiiiimiieeeeeeereeeeeeere e eee s e eeeerereeenesenns 17

Section 18.2 Removal of Buildings and Improvements....................c.....o....... 17

Section 183 NON-REIOVAL......ccoiiriiseeeeeee et e et eseseserassranes 18

ARTICLE XIX Lottt e trre et e ases s st e sa st sesesneann s eesassetes e s et eessesesseasseseeresenssrereesenens 18

it



Assignment of Tenant’s Interest; MOrtgages. .......c.co.oooevrierieerceensiesrce e csns e s 18

Section 19.1  Transfers: COMSENT.......oooviriieiiirerrorierreesesesessessesesssssessssesssssessssses I8

Section 19.2 Environmental Condition on Assignment ...........c..coovevervvevnnnen. 19

Section 193 MOTTZAZES ...c.oo.vcvieeieeeceieee ettt ss e et enens seaes 19

ARTICLE XX ot ra et er e e ss s e st st e be s sasse e ot sece e seresessanesreasesssasantessessssssseneanens 19
Statements, Records, Accounts, and Audit.........ccoooeoriivereccnnecncieree e 19
ARTICLE XX ...ttt eectss ettt esssseseaatses s s este s st naasesseen e et anesssenrasessetesnebenssesesenres 19
INOBICES «.vevveerevicteetecreeaemi et et et b sss et ta s et s mtameseerensenena eaessseneeenenenenessseenssanersensassensessenesessasens 19
ARTICLE XXIH ..o e renieie s s isa s et st ah s st as s e st e st 0 emearseteesssaneereenseseassssssensensesrsesssinsssesnes 20
IMISCRIAIIBOUS ... eveveeveeie ettt ete et e e er e s be s e s st e et e beaeemtesentamenemee e e s e e seasareassanrann 20
Section 22.1 Whole ASreement...........c.cccovvieveerieceiiis e e 20

Section 22.2  Strict PerfOrmance ..o n e 20

Section 223 Memorandum of Lease.....oooveeie v e reeee e eeeeeerereeseeane 20

Section 22.4 EREIFe APIECIIENT coooooviiiiciiieiieeeiarere e eeesssssesssessesssssessessssssesssessenson 20

Section 22.5  CAPHOMS ...cvccvievicrieeecesieeeireereee s s s saeassassasssassnesnesesssessassseneas 20

Section 22.6  INVALIAILY...ocoovoeeeeeeec e 20

Section 22.7  Governing Law ..........c.ocoveiiincnieneer et sessa e st 20

Section 22.8 Binding Effect ..o s e e enen 21

Section 22.9  FEIIL......ccocoivvieieee ittt st san et s s e nrerenr et 21




GROUND LEASE

THIS GROUND LEASE made and entered into as ofthe _ day of ,2024, by
and between CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO, a municipal corporation organized and operated under the
laws of the State of Ohio (“Landlord™), having an address at 132 North Elmwood Avenue, Medina,
Ohio 44256, and UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC., an Ohio non-profit
corporation (“Tenant™), having an address at 3605 Warrensville Center Road, Shaker Heights, Ohio
44122.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Landlord is the owner of certain land located at the Medina Municipal Airport
{the “Airport”) in Sharon Township, Medina County, Ohio, more particularly described or depicted
on ixhibit “A” attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the “Premises™);

WHEREAS, Tenant is leasing from a third party the modular building (the “Modular
Building”) currently situated upon a portion of the Premises which is used as the crew headquarters
for Tenant’s helicopter medivac operations at the Airport;

WHEREAS, Tenant is currently using or desires to use a single T-hangar space (the “UH T-
Hangar”) located within a multiple T-hangar building at the Airport owned by Landlord, which is
also described or depicted on Exhibit “A” and which UH T-Hangar is to be included as part of the
Premises;

WHEREAS, Tenant previously occupied the Premises, directly or indirectly, pursuant to an
existing lease dated June 26, 2012, which existed between Flight Services of Medina, a Division of
Olson Products, as Lessee and the Landlord, as City, but which existing lease is being or has been
terminated and is being replaced hereby as of the Rent Commencement Date;

WHEREAS, Landlord, in furtherance of carrying out its public purpose in the ownership and
operation of the Airport desires to grant a new ground lease to Tenant and Tenant desires to obtain a
new ground lease of the Premises for the purposes herein stated;

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound hereby, do agree
that Landlord, for and in consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements hereinafter reserved
on the part of the Tenant to be paid, kept and performed, does hereby demise and lease unto Tenant,
and Tenant does hereby take and hire from Landlord, all such interest of Landlord in and to the
Premises for the uses and purposes hereinafter set forth and upon the following covenants,
agreements, terms, provisions, conditions and limitations:



ARTICLE 1
Definitions
For the purpose of this Lease, unless the context otherwise clearly requires:

(a) The term “Air Operator”, as used herein, shall mean the FAA certificated aviation
company providing the helicopter(s), pilots and mechanics under agreement with Tenant to provide
Tenant with air transportation services staged at the Premises.

(a) The term “Base Rent”, as used herein, means that portion of the Rent specified in
Section 2.1 hereof.

(b)  The term “Event of Default”, as used herein, means any event set forth in paragraphs
(a) or (b), inclusive, of Section 16.1 hereof.

(c) The term “Field Market Rent”, as used herein means the base rent per square foot of
land charged by the Landlord on an annualized basis for five (5) year ground leases. The per square
foot rate is determined in good faith by Landlord based upon a review of market conditions at the
Airport and the rates charged upon ground leases entered into by the Landlord or which have had
rent adjustments within the past eighteen (18) month period.

(d)  The term “Imposition”, as used herein, means any tax, assessment, ad valorem real
property tax, excise, levy, license or permit fee or other govemmental charge, general and specific,
ordinary and extraordinaty, unforeseen and foreseen, of any kind and nature whatsoever which at
any time during the Term may be assessed, levied, confirmed, imposed upon, or grow or become
due and payable out of or in respect of, or become a lien on (a) the Premises or any part thereof, or
(b) the rent, income or other payments received by Tenant or anyone claiming by, through or under
Tenant, or (c) any use or occupation of the Premises or any part thereof.

(e) The term “Institution”, as used herein, means a savings bank, bank, trust or insurance
company, pension fund (whether or not managed by a state agency), or lending institution
authorized to make mortgage loans and supervised or regulated by the United States of America or
any state thereof.

3] The term “Landlord”, as used herein, means City of Medina, Ohio, its successors or
assigns.

(g)  Theterm “Lease Year”, as used herein, means a period of twelve (12) full consecutive
months commencing upon the Rent Commencement Date.

(h}  The term “Manager” as used herein, means any manager of the Airport operations as
designated by the Landlord from time to time.

(i) The term “Premises”, as used herein, means real property described on Exhibit “A”
attached hereto and made a part hereof.



0 The term “Rent”, as used herein, means the sum of the Base Rent and such other sums
as are payable to Landlord in accordance with the terms hereof.

(k)  The term “Rent Conmumencement Date”, as used herein, shall mean ,
2024,

] The term “Tenant”, as used herein, means University Hospitals Health System, Inc.

(m)  The term “Term”, as used herein, means the period of time described in Section 3.1
hereof, or if applicable, any extension term referenced in Section 3.2 hereof which has been
exercised. The “Initial Term” is five (5) years from the Rent Commencement Date.

ARTICLE 1
Rent

Section2.1 Base Rent. As part of Rent, Tenant shall pay to Landlord Seventy-Two
Thousand Dollars ($72,000.00), as Base Rent for the Premises, during the Term, payable in advance
in sixty (60) monthly installments each in the amount of One Thousand Two Hundred Dollars
($1,200.00) with the first due on the Rent Commencement Date and successive monthly
installments due on the first day of each and every month thereafter during the Term.

Section 2.2  Place of Payments. Tenant shall make payment of each installment of Rent,
without notice or demand, to Landlord in lawful money of the United States of America at
Landiord’s offices which, until Tenant shall be otherwise notified in writing by Landlord, shall be
ATTN: Airport Manager, Medina Municipal Airport, 2050 Medina Road, Medina, Ohio 44256. All
such payments of Rent, except as otherwise provided herein, shall be made without deduction,
counterclaim, abatement, suspension, deferment, defense, diminution or setoff for any reason
whatsoever.

Section23  Delinquent Pavment; Handling Charges. In the event Tenant is more than
ten (10) days late in paying any amount of Rent or any other payment due under this Lease, then
without the need for any further notice to Tenant, Tenant shall pay Landlord, within ten (10)
business days of Landlord’s written demand therefor, a late charge equal to five percent (5%) of the
delinquent amount. In addition, any amount due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder which is not
paid within thirty (30) days of the date due shall bear interest at a monthly rate of one and one-half
percent (1.5%). The payment of such late charge or interest by Tenant shall not constitute a waiver
of any default by Tenant hereunder.




ARTICLE 110
Term
Section 3.1  Initial Term. The covenants, conditions and obligations of the parties under

this Lease and possessory rights hereunder shall become effective upon the Rent Commencement
Date and shall continue for five (5) years.

Section 3.2 Extension. Tenant may extend the Initial Term of this Lease for one (1)
additional period of three (3) years, and a subsequent additional period of two (2) years upon the
same terms and conditions herein contained, provided, however, that Base Rent for each such
renewal period shall be the shall be the Field Market Rent determined at the commencement of such
renewal period multiplied by the number of years in the renewal period. Each option shall be
exercised upon written notice received by Landiord not later than ninety (90) days prior to the
expiration of the then existing Term of this Lease as it would expite without such an extension.
Tenant’s right to extend shall terminate if this Lease or Tenant’s right to occupy the Premises shall
be terminated on default of Tenant or as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IV

Ownership of Improvements; Additional Improvements

Section4.1  Ownership of Improvements. It is understood the Modular Building is not
owned by Landlord and is owned by Tenant or a third-party providing the use of same to Tenant.
The UH T-Hangar is owned by Landlord and including as part of the Premises leased to Tenant “AS
[S” and without warrant whatsoever. Upon termination or expiration of the Term other than in the
event of Tenant default, ownership of buildings and improvements shall be determined by reference
to Article XVIIL.

Section4.2 Additional Improvements. Tenant shall not make any additional
improvements upon the Premises, nor shall Tenant materially alter the exterior of any existing
improvements upon the Premises without the prior written consent of the Landlord, which shall not
be unreasonably withheld. All additional improvements and/or alterations under this section shall
be made in accordance with reasonable standards set by the Landlord and in accordance with
applicable laws, codes and ordinances.

ARTICLEV

Uses and Conduct of Business

Section 5.1  Purposes. Tenant shall use and occupy the Premises solely for the following
purposes and none others: {(a) operation, staging and parking of a single medivac helicopter (the
“Helicopter”) provided for service to Tenant by Tenant’s Air Operator and operated solely by
Tenant’s Air Operator for the transport of health care related patients on behalf of Tenant; (b)

4



service and maintenance of the Helicopter; (¢} storage of necessary items in support of the operation
of the medivac hospital (not, however, including fuel or fuel storage; provided, however, Tenant
may maintain means approved by the Manager to transport jet fuel for the Helicopter from the jet
fuel A facility by means of a bowser); and (d) office purposes in direct support of only the foregoing
purposes. In the event Tenant has the Helicopter provided by Tenant’s Air Operator for the above
purposes that is inside the adjacent helicopter maintenance hangar undergoing maintenance and/or
repair, Tenant may during the period of maintenance and repair have a substitute operable
Helicopter at the Premises for operation by the Tenant’s Air Operator for air transport of health care
related patients on behalf of Tenant. In connection with the air transport of health-related patients
on behalf of Tenant, Tenant’s Air Operator may have an ambulance provided, owned and operated
by Tenant’s Air Operator (the “Tenant Ambulance™) at the Premises subject to any rules and
regulations or dictates of the Airport manager pertaining to the parking of vehicles at the Airport,

It is understood that the UH T-Hangar is included as part of the Premises as an accommodation to
Tenant. Landlord reserves the right to recapture the UH T-Hangar in the event Landlord elects to
either (1) demolish the building of which the UH T-Hangar is a part or (2) renovate the building of
which the UH T-Hangar is a part, or (3) is needed for other aircraft storage by reason of demand
therefor at the Alrport. Landlord will give Tenant ten (10) business days’ notice of recapture of the
UH T-Hangar. Base Rent shall not be reduced by reason of any such recapture of the UH T-
Hangar. In the event the UH T-Hangar is recaptured Landlord will, or will cause the Airpost
Manager to, cooperate with Tenant to explore alternate options for accommodating the need for
staging/storage of the Tenant Ambulance.

Section 5.2  Prohibited Purposes. In addition to other uses that are prohibited, Tenant
shall not use or occupy the Premises or any part thereof, nor permit any portion of the Premises to
be used, for any of the following purposes: (a) service or maintenance on any aircraft or aircraft
component not owned by Tenant other than the Helicopter; (b) outside storage of aircraft or other
items other than the Helicopter (for example, “tie-downs” of other aircraft at the Premises are not
permitted) and temporary parking of an ambulance setvicing the medivac operations provided the
same is permitted under FAA rules and regulations and any Airport rules and regulations (including,
but not limited to any minimum standards for aeronautical activity adopted by the Airport); (¢)
fueling of any aircraft other than Jet A fueling of the Helicopter utilizing a bowser to obtain Jet A
fuel from the fuel farm located at the Fix Base Operator premises at the Airport; and (d) any use that
is not specifically authorized in Section 5.1 above.

Section 53 No Exclusive Rights. It is agreed between the parties hereto that Tenant wil
not grant to any person, firm or corporation or permit any persons, firms or corporations to exercise
any exclusive right for the use of the Airport for commercial flight operations, including air carrier
transportation, rental of aircraft, conduct of charter flights, operation of flight schools, or cartying on
of any other exclusive right forbidden by 49 United States Code, Section 40103(e). it is specifically
agreed that nothing herein contained shall be construed as granting or authorizing the granting of
any exclusive right within the meaning of such Section of said Federal Aviation Act.

Section 5.4  No Discrimination. In Tenant’s use of, and operations in connection with, the
Premises during the term of this Lease and any and all renewals thereof, Tenant agrees that it will
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, or




national origin. Tenant will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, creed, color, or national
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: Employment, upgrading,
demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

Tenant agrees that in the sale of goods, or rendering of services to the public, it will seli or
fumish such goods or services on a fair, equal, and not unjustly discriminatory basis to all users
thereof, and that it will charge fair, reasonable and not unjustly discriminatory prices for each unit of
service, provided, however, that Tenant may be allowed to make reasonable and non-discriminatory
discounts, rates or price reductions to volume users or purchasers. Nothing herein is intended to
infer or be construed as expanding the purposes for which Tenant may use the Premises,

Section 5.5 Tenant’s Responsibility. Except as otherwise provided in this Ground Lease,
Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Premises shall be at its sole cost and expense.

Section 5.6 Conduct of Business, ete. Tenant shall (a) conduct its business and operate
the Premises at all times in a reasonable, safe and reputable manner, (b) keep or cause to be kept the
Premises and improvements thereon, including entry ways, signage, graphics, and exterior and
interior portions of doors, windows and other glass and plate glass fixtures thereon, in a neat, clean,
sanitary and attractive condition, and (c) not unreasonably interfere with, hinder or obstruct
Landiord’s operations or other Tenants of Landlord on adjacent or nearby property,

Section 5.7 Hazardous Materials; Indemnity. (8) Tenant shall conduct its business
and shall cause all persons occupying all or any portion of the Premises and all of their
respective agents, employees, contractors and invitees to act in such a manner as to (i) not reiease
or permit the release of any Hazardous Material, and (ii) not create any nuisance or unreasonable
interference with or disturbance of other tenants of the Project or Landlord in its management of
the Project. “Hazardous Material” means any hazardous, explosive, radioactive or toxic
substance, material or waste which is or becomes regulated by any local governmental authority,
the state in which the Premises is located or the United States, including, without limitation, any
material or substance which is (A) defined or listed as a “hazardous waste,” “extremely
hazardous waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” “hazardous substance,” “hazardous material,”
“pollutant” or “contaminant” under any Law, (B) petroleum or a petroleum derivative, (C) a
flammable explosive, (D) a radioactive material, (E) a polychlorinated biphenyl, (F) asbestos or
an asbestos derivative, or (G) a carcinogen. The foregoing is not intended to prohibit the proper
use of fuel for the Helicopter operations otherwise in compliance with this Lease.

(b) In addition to any other indemnity contained in this Lease, Tenant hereby shall
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all claims, losses and
costs arising from or asserted in connection with: (i) Tenant’s breach of any of the covenants set
forth in this Section 5.7, and/or (ii) to the extent caused or allowed by Tenant, or any agent,
employee, contractor, invitee or licensee of Tenant, the presence on, under, or the escape,
seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, release from, onto or into the Premises, the
building, the land surrounding, the atmosphere, or any watercourse, body of water or ground
water, of any Hazardous Material. The undertaking and indemnification set forth in this Section

6



5.7 shall survive the termination of this Lease and shall continue to be the personal liability and
obligation of Tenant.

Section 5.8  Rules and Regulations. Tenant shall comply with all rules and regulations
issued by Landlord or by the Manager with the consent of the Landlord, including, but not limited to
regulations conceming signage, parking, minimum standards of operation, architectural and
aesthetic, security, safety, and operations. In addition, Tenant understands that Landlord receives
funds from FAA administered financial assistance programs and is subject to various grant
assurances (“Grant Assurances”) in connection therewith. This Lease is subject to the Grant
Assurance and any rules or regulation adopted by the Landlord requiring Tenant’s compliance with
requirements dictated by the Grant Assurances as applicable to Tenant or Tenant’s operations at the
Airport,

ARTICLE VI

1mpositions

Section 6.1 Payment by Tepant. Tenant shall pay, before any fine, penalty, interest or
cost may be added thereto, or become due or be imposed by operation of law for the non-payment
thereof, all pro-rata Impositions related to the Premises during the Term; provided, however, that if,
by law, any Imposition may at the option of the taxpayer be paid in installments (whether or not
interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of such Imposition) Tenant may exercise the option to
pay the same (and any accrued interest on the unpaid balance of such Imposition) in instaliments
and, in such event, shall pay such instaliments as may become due during the Term as the same
respectively becomne due and before any fine, penalty, further interest or cost may be added thereto;
provided, further, however, that the amount of all installments of any such Imposition which are to
become due and payable after the expiration of the Term shall be paid on or before the date of such
expiration. It is further provided that any lmposition, other than Impositions which have been
converted into installment payments by Tenant as aforesaid relating to a fiscal period of the taxing
authority, a part of which period is included in a period of time after the expiration of the Term,
shall (whether or not such Imposition shall be assessed, levied, confirmed, imposed upon or in
respect to or become a lien upon the Premises or shall become payable during the Term) be
apportioned between Landlord and Tenant as of the expiration of the Term.

Section 6.2 Landlord’s Obligations. Nothing herein contained shall require Tenant to
pay municipal, state, county, or federal income taxes assessed against Landlord, or any municipal,
state, county, or federal capital, levy, succession, or transfer taxes of Landlord.

Section 6.3 Right to Contest. Tenant shall have the right to contest the amount or
validity, in whole or in part, of any Imposition by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted in
good faith but only after payment of such Imposition unless such payment would operate as a bar to
such contest or interfere materially with the prosecution thereof, in which event, notwithstanding the
provisions of Section 6.1 hereof, Tenant may postpone or defer payment of such Imposition if
neither the Premises nor any part thereof would by reason of such postponement or deferment be in
danger of being forfeited or lost. Upon the termination of any such proceedings, Tenant shall pay
the amount of such [mposition or part thereof as finally determined in such proceedings the

7



payment of which may have been deferred during the prosecution of such proceedings, together
with any costs, fees, interest, penalties or other liabilities in connection therewith.

Section 6.4 Separate Assessments. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to obtain real
estate tax assessments for the Premises which are segregated from the remainder of Landlord’s
properties. In the event that such segregated assessments are obtained, Landlord shall cooperate
with Tenant in requesting the appropriate public authorities to send all notices relating to
Impositions directly to Tenant during the Term; Tenant shall promptly deliver to Landlord copies of
all such notices received by Tenant.

Section 6.5 No Joinder in Proceedings. Landlord shall not be required to join in any
proceedings referred to in Section 6.3 hereof uniess the provisions of any law, rule, or regulation at
the time in effect shall require that such proceedings be brought by and/or in the name of Landlord,
in which case Landlord shall join in such proceedings or permit the same to be brought in its name.
Landlord shall not be subjected to any liability for the payment of any costs or expenses in
connection with any such proceedings, and Tenant will indemnify, protect, and save harmless
Landlord from any such costs and expenses. Tenant shall be entitled to any refund of any
Imposition and penalties or interest thereon received by Landlord which have been paid by Tenant,
or which have been paid by Landlord but previously reimbursed in full by Tenant.

ARTICLE VII
Insurance

Section 7.1  Liability Insurance. Tenant shall, in addition to any other insurance required
to be maintained by Tenant under the provisions of this Article VII, beginning with the
commencement of the Term, maintain standard contractual liability insurance covering Tenant’s
indemnification of Landlord as provided in Article 13 hereof with limits of not less than those
provided for in Section 7.3 hereof.

Section7.2  Insurance; Hangar Keeper’s Insurance Coverage. Tenant shall keep the
Premises, together with any alterations, additions or improvements thereon (including but not
limited to the Crew Building thereon) and all fixtures, contents, personal property and equipment
contained therein and belonging to Tenant or Tenant’s sublessees insured during the Term against
foss or damage by perils insured under extended coverage policy and any such other risks and
casualties for which insurance is customarily provided for improvements of similar character in an
amount not less than the greater of (a) eighty percent (80%}) of the current full replacement value of
such property or (b) the outstanding principal balance existing from time to time of any
indebtedness secured by a lien upon the Tenant’s leasehold interest in the Premises. In addition,
Tenant shall maintain (i) Hangar Keeper’s Liability Insurance with respect to any aircraft storage
uses in such amounts as will adequately protect against loss or casualty fo aircraft stored in any
hangar, and (ii) property and casualty insurance coverage for the full value of property housed or
stored at any time in or about the Premises and/or the UH T-Hangar. Tenant agrees that Landlord
shall have no responsibility for loss of or damage to any property, including but not limited to,
personal property or fixtures, kept at or about the Premises or UH T-Hangar whether owned by
Tenant or any invitee or licensee of Tenant.




Section7.3 Public Liability Insurance. Tenant shall maintain during the Term
comprehensive general public liability insurance against claims for personal injury, bodily injury,
death or property damage occurring on or in the Premises, with a combined single limit of not less
than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00), or the equivalent thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing
and without regard to whether Tenant is financing any portion of the Premises, at no time shall the
aforesaid limits be less than the minimum limits from time to time recommended by Landlord’s
insurance advisor.

Section74  Vielation. Tenant shall not knowingly violate or knowingly permit to be
violated any of the conditions or provisions of any policy provided for in this Article VIL.

Section 7.5 Type_of Policies. All insurance provided for in this Article VII shall be
affected under valid and enforceable policies issued by insurers rated at least “A” by Best’s Rating
Guide which are licensed to do business in the State of Ohio. If at any time the said Rating Guide
shall cease to be published, there shall be substituted therefor the most similar rating guide then
published. Insurer certified duplicates or originals of such policies bearing notations evidencing the
payment of premiums or accompanied by other evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord of
such payment, shall be delivered by Tenant to Landlord at Landlord’s written request.
Notwithstanding the forgoing provisions of this Section 7.5, in the event Tenant in the ordinary
course of its business and having sufficient financial wherewithal regularly self-insures risks of the
nature as would be covered by the policies of insurance required in this Article VIl via self-
insurance policies, Tenant may do so. Upon request by Landlord, Tenant shall provide reasonable
substantiation of its capacity to self-insure.

Section 7.6 Tenant as Insured. All policies of insurance and self-insurance provided for
in Sections 7.1 and 7.3 hereof shall name Tenant as an insured. Such policies shall also name
Landlord as an additional insured. Each such policy shall contain an agreement by the insurer that
such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Landlord.
The loss, if any, under any policies provided for in Section 7.2 hereof shall be adjusted with the
insurance companies by Tenant; the proceeds of any such insurance, as so adjusted, shall be payable
to Tenant for the purposes set forth in Article XIV hereof.

Section 7.7  Blanket Policies. Any insurance provided for in this Article VII may be
affected by a policy or policies of blanket insurance; provided, however, that the amount of the total
insurance allocated to the Premises shall be such as to fumish the equivalent of separate policies in
the amounts herein required; and provided further that in all other respects, any such policy or
policies shall comply with all other provisions of this Article VII.

Section7.8 Waiver. Tenant and Landlord hereby mutually waive to the fullest extent
permitted by law any right of subrogation that either of their respective insurance carriers may have
from time to time against the other party hereto, said party’s directors, officers, employees, agents,
tenants and visitors and their respective heirs, personal representatives, and assigns. For the
purposes of this Section 7.8, Tenant and Landlord will cause to be delivered to each other
certificates issued by their respective insurance carriers acknowledging the foregoing waiver by
them of such right of subrogation.




ARTICLE VI

Services to, and Repairs and Maintenance of, the Premises

Section 8.1  Landlord Obligations. Landlord shall not be required to fumish any services
or facilities or to make any repairs or alterations, additions, or improvements in or to the Premises.
Landiord shall use reasonable efforts to cause its Airport Manager to reasonably maintain common
areas such as runways, common taxiways, access roadways, security gates and fencing, and
equipment owned by the Landlord at the Alirport necessary for aeronautical operations conducted at
the Airport.

Section 8.2 Tenant Obligations. Tenant shall fumish at its sole cost and expense all
services and facilities and make any repairs or alterations, additions, or improvements on or to the
Premises which are necessary to maintain the Premises in good condition and repair and in sightly
condition, all in accordance with reasonable standards set by the Landlord and in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and ordinances. Without limiting the foregoing, Tenant shall take good care
of and make necessary repairs, structural or otherwise, to the Premises, and the buildings, fixtures,
equipment and fumishings thereon, roadways and parking areas thereon, utility lines and the
appurtenances thereto.

Section 8.3 Tenant’s Neglect. In the event that after thirty (30) days prior written notice
Tenant refuses or neglects to make the repairs and perform the maintenance specified in Section 8.2
hereof, Landlord shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to make such repairs and perform
such maintenance on behalf of and for the account of Tenant. In the event that Landlord shail make
such repairs and perform such maintenance, such work shall be paid for by Tenant at cost plus ten
percent (10%) for Landlord’s overhead and supervision.

Section 8.4 Triple Net Lease. The parties intend that this Lease be a “triple net lease,”
meaning that Tenant shall pay all real estate taxes, all special assessments (if any), all insurance
premiums, and without limitation each and every other cost and expense pertaining to Tenant’s use
and possession of the Premises and maintenance and repair thereof and all buildings or
improvements thereon.

ARTICLE IX

Compliance with Laws

Section 9.1 Tenant’s Covenant. Tenant shall promptly comply with or shall cause each
occupant of the Project and Premises to comply with, all present and future laws, ordinances, orders,
rules, regulations and requirements of all federal, state and municipal govemments, courts,
departments, commissions, boards and offices, any national or local Board of Fire Underwriters, or
any other body exercising functions similar to those of any of the foregoing, foreseen or unforeseen,
ordinary as well as extraordinary, which may be applicable to the Premises or to the use or manner
of use of the Premises or any part thereof.




Section 9.2  Right to Contest. Tenant shall have the right to contest by appropriate
proceedings diligently conducted in good faith, in the name of Tenant or Landlord or both, without
cost or expense to Landlord, the validity or application of any law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation
or requirement of the nature referred to in Section 9.1 hereof. If by the terms of any such law,
ordinance, order, rule, regulation or requirement, compliance therewith pending the prosecution of
any such proceeding may legally be delayed without the incurrence of any lien of any kind against
the Premises or Tenant’s leasehold interest therein and without subjecting Landlord to any criminal
liability for failure so to comply therewith, Tenant may delay compliance therewith until the final
determination of such proceeding, provided that Tenant prosecutes the contest with due diligence.
Landlord shall join in any proceedings referred to in this Section 9.2 if the provisions of any
applicable law, rule, or regulation at the time in effect shall require that such proceedings be brought
by and/or in the name of Landlord, provided that Tenant shall advance all costs and expenses to be
incurred as a result.

ARTICLE X
Liens

Section 10.1 No Liens. Tenant shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Landlord from
and against any and all mechanics’ and other liens and encumbrances filed by any person claiming
through or under Tenant, including security interests in any materials, fixtures, equipment or any
other improvements or appurtenances installed in and constituting part of the Premises and against
all costs, expenses and liabilities (including reasonable attomeys’ fees) incurred in connection with
any such lien or encumbrance or any action or proceeding brought thereon. Under no circumstances
shall the interest of Landlord in and to the Premises be subject to liens for improvements made by
Tenant or subject to any mechanic’s, laborer’s or materialman’s lien or any other lien or charge on
account of or arising from any contract or obligation of Tenant.

Section 10.2 Discharge of Liens. [f any mechanic’s, laboretr’s or materialman’s lien shall
at any time be filed against the Premises or any part thereof, Tenant shall with all due diligence
cause the same to be discharged of record by payment, deposit, bond, order of a court of competent
jurisdiction or otherwise.

Section 10.3 No Landlord Privity. Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed in
any way as constituting the request of Landlord, express or implied, by inference or otherwise, to
any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, or materialman for the performance of any labor or the
fumishing of any materials for any specific improvement, alteration to or repair of the Premises or
any part thereof.

ARTICLE XI

Right to Perform Covenants

Section 11.1 Landiord’s Rights as to Insurance. If Tenant shall at any time fail to pay for
or maintain any of the insurance policies provided for in Article VII hereof or cause the same to be
done, then Landlord, after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Tenant and without waiving or

1



releasing Tenant from any obligation of Tenant hereunder, may (but shall not be required to) pay for
and maintain any of the insurance policies provided for in Article VII hereof. Tenant may, at its
election, replace any such insurance so obtained by Landlord with substitute policies which satisfy
the requirements of Article VII.

Section 112 Eandlord’s Rights as to Impositions. If Tenant shall at any time fail to make
payment of any Imposition as and when required in Article VII hereof, then Landlord, after thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to Tenant, and without waiving or releasing Tenant from any
obligation of Tenant hereunder, may (but shall not be required to) make any such payment as
provided for in Article VI hereof.

Section 11.3 Tenant’s Lack of Diligence. If Tenant shall at any time fail to make any
payment or perform with due diligence any other act on its part to be made or performed under the
terms the Lease, Landlord, without waiving or releasing Tenant from any obligation of Tenant
hereunder, may (but shall not be required to) make any payment or perform any other act on
Tenant’s part to be made or performed.

Section 11.4 Additional Rent. All sums paid by Landiord pursuant to this Article XI and
all costs and expenses incurred by Landlord in connection with the performance of any such act
shall constitute additional Rent payable by Tenant under this Lease within ten (10) business days
after demand.

ARTICLE X1I

Entry on Property by Landlord

Landlord shall have the right to enter the Premises at all reasonable times. Except in the event
of an emergency, Landlord shall endeavor to provide twenty-four (24) hour advance notice of entry.

ARTICLE X1II

Indemnification

Tenant shall indemnify, protect and save harmless Landlord and Landlord’s trustees, officers,
and employees, and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns from and
against all liabilities, damages, penalties, claims, costs and expenses, including reasonable
architect’s and attomey’s fees, which may be imposed upon or incurred by, or asserted against
them, or any of them, arising out of or in connection with any intentional, willful or negligent act of
Tenant or its sublessees during the period of Tenant’s use and/or occupancy of the Premises, or
otherwise arising out of any failure by Tenant to perform or comply with the terms hereof; or to
cause its sublessees’ or subtenants’ agents, employees or assigns to perform and comply with the
covenants, agreements, terms or conditions contained herein which are to be performed or complied
with by Tenant.

12



ARTICLE XIV

Damage or Destruction

Section 14.1 Substantial. In the event of casualty to the Premises or Modular Building
resulting in damage or destruction exceeding in the aggregate fifty percent (50%) of the then
replacement cost thereof, Tenant shall have the option of (a) restoring, repairing, replacing,
rebuilding or altering the Premises or Modular Building or (b) terminating this Lease by written
notice to Landlord given within thirty (30) days after such damage of destruction accompanied by
payment to Landlord of the Rent and other charges payable by Tenant under this Lease to the date
of such termination.

Section 14.2 No Rent Abatement. Except as provided in Section 14.1 hereof, no damage
to or destruction of the Premise, the Modular Building, or any patt thereof by fire or other casualty
shall terminate or permit Tenant to surrender this Lease, or shall relieve Tenant from its liability to
pay the Rent and other charges payable under this Lease.

Section 14.3 Restoration. In case of the damage to or destruction of the Premises or any
part thereof by fire or other casualty, subject to the rights of the mortgagee, if any, the rights of
Landlord and Tenant to share in the proceeds, if any, of casualty insurance with respect to the
Premises shall be as follows and in the following order of priority:

(a) If Tenant shall restore, repair, replace, or rebuild Premises and Modular Building as
nearly as possible to their values, condition, and character immediately prior to such event, Tenant
shall receive all of such proceeds.

(b) If Tenant shall terminate this Lease in accordance with the provisions of Section 14.1
hereof, there shall first be set aside for the benefit of Landiord an amount necessary to demolish or
repair (in Landlord’s discretion) any improvements made to the Premises including but not limited
to the Modular Building, which have suffered casualty and, if not repaired, remove them from the
land. Tenant shall next be entitled to receive any balance of such proceeds.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, any shortfall in insurance proceeds
necessary to accomplish the restoration, repair, replacement, rebuilding, or restoration under
subsection (a) above or to demolish/remove or repair under subsection (b) above shall be due and
payable by Tenant and Landlord shall have the same rights and remedies to recover sums from
Tenant in the same manner as available for the recovery of unpaid Rent.

ARTICLE XV
Condemnation

Section 15.1 Eminent Domain. In the event that the Premises or any part thereof shall be
taken in condemnation proceedings or by exercise of any right of eminent domain or by agreement

13



between Landlord and Tenant and those authorized to exercise such right, or shall incur a
compensable injury under the eminent domain, the Landlord and Tenant and any person or entity
having an interest in the Landlord’s or Tenant’s share of the award shall have the right to participate
in any condemnation proceedings or agreement as aforesaid for the purpose of protecting their
respective interests hereunder.

Section 152 Substantial. If at any time during the Term title to the whole or substantially
all of the Premises shall be taken by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent domain, or
by agreement between the Landlord and Tenant, and those authorized to exercise such right, this
Lease may be terminated by Tenant on the date of such taking and the Rent provided to be paid by
Tenant shall be apportioned and paid to the date of such taking. In such event, Impositions shall be
apportioned only to the extent actually collected by Landlord, and, if uncoilected, Landlord shall
assign to Tenant any claim to recover such Impositions. For the purposes of this Section 15.2
“substantially all of the Premises” shall be deemed to have been taken if the portion of the Premises
not so taken and taking into consideration the amount of the net award available for such purpose,
cannot be so repaired or reconstructed as to constitute a complete, usable structure. If this Lease is
not terminated by Tenant hereunder, then Tenant shall be entitled to a proportionate abatement of
rent equal to the percentage of the Premises which has been taken.

Section 15.3 Payment of Proceeds. In the event of the taking of the whole or substantially
all of the Premises, subject to the rights of the mortgagee, if any, the rights of Landlord and Tenant
to share in the proceeds of any award received for the Premises upon any such taking or injury shall
be as follows and in the following order of priority:

(a) Landlord shall be entitled fo a sum equal to the then current fair market value of the
land and the UH T-Hangar;

{b)  Tenant shall be entitled to a sum equal to the then current fair market value of
Tenant’s leasehold estate created hereunder, plus improvements (excluding the UH T-Hangar but
including the Modular Building if then owned by Tenant) not included in the market value of the
land as in (a) above.

Section 154 Restoration. If any time during the Term title to less than the whole or
substantially all of the Premises shall be taken as aforesaid, Tenant or its sublessees or successors ,
to the extent that condemnation proceeds, if any, shall be sufficient for the purpose, shall restore,
repair, replace, rebuild or alter the Premises as nearly as possible to their value, condition and
character immediately prior to such event and subject to the rights of the mortgagee, if any, all of
the award or awards collected therefor shall first be applied and paid over toward the cost of such
demolition, repair, and restoration. Any balance remaining after payment of such costs of
demolition, repairs, and restoration shall be applied and paid over substantially in the same manner
and subject to the same conditions as those provided in Section 153 hereof as such provisions
related to the portion of the Premises so taken.

Section 155 Reduction. Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, if title to less
than the whole or substantially all of the Premises shall be taken or injured as aforesaid, this Lease
shall continue, and Tenant shall continue to pay the Rent and other charges herein reserved with

14



appropriate abatement based upon the portion of the Premises taken or rendered unusable by the
taking.

Section 15.6 Notice. If the temporary use of the whole or any part of the Premises shall be
taken by any lawful power or authority, by the exercise of the right of condemnation or eminent
domain, or by agreement between Tenant and those authorized to exercise such right, Tenant shall
give prompt notice thereof to Landlord, the Term shall not be reduced or affected in any way,
Tenant shall continue to pay in full the Rent and other charges herein reserved, without reduction or
abatement, and Tenant shall be entitled to receive for itself any award or payment made for such use
during the Term, subject to the rights of any mortgagee.

ARTICLE XVI1

Conditional Limitations - Defaunlt Provisions

Section 16.1 Tenant Events of Default. If any one or more of the following events shall
happen:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of Rent when and as the
same shall become due and payable, and such default shall continue for a period of ten (10) business
days after written notice thereof from Landlord to Tenant; or

{(b)  if default shall be made by Tenant in the performance of or compliance with any of
the covenants, agreements, terms or conditions confained in this Lease other than those referred to
in the foregoing paragraph (a), and such default shall not be cured within a period of thirty (30) days
after written notice thereof from Landlord to Tenant {except that in connection with a default under
subparagraph (b) not susceptible of being cured with due diligence within forty-five (45) days, the
time of Tenant within which to cure the same shall be extended for such time as may be necessary
to cure the same with alf due diligence, provided Tenant commences and proceeds diligently to cure
the same within the aforesaid forty-five (45) day period and further provided that such period of
time shall not be so extended as to subject Landlord to any criminal liability); and

(c) whether or not the same shall have been cured, if Tenant shall have defaulted upon
any covenants, agreements, terms, or conditions contained in this Lease (including, but not limited
to violations of Landlord’s rules and regulations) on more than three (3) occasions in any five (5)
year period;

then, and in case of such event under (a), (b) or (¢) (“Events of Defauit”), Landlord at any time
thereafier during the continuance of such event or Events of Default may give written notice to
Tenant, specifying such event or Events of Default and stating that this Lease and the Term hereby
demised shall expire and terminate on the date specified in such notice or that Landlord may at its
election cure such default at Tenant’s expense, which date shall be at least forty-five (45) days after
the giving of such notice in case of any Event of Default; and upon the date specified in such notice,
this Lease and the Term and all rights of Tenant under this Lease shall expire and terminate.



Section 16.2 Surrender of Premises. Upon any expiration or termination of this Lease,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.1 hereof, Tenant shall quietly and peacefully surrender the
Premises to Landlord, and Landlord, upon or any time after such expiration or termination, may,
without further notice, enter upon and re-enter the Premises and by summary proceeding, judgment
or otherwise, and may have, hold and enjoy the Premises, and all buildings and improvements
thereon, and the right to receive all rental income from the Premises. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event the Modular Building is not currently owned by Tenant or an affiliate of
Tenant and not acquired by the Tenant or an affiliate of Tenant at the date of expiration or
termination pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.1, the owner of the Modular Building will be
permitted to promptly remove the Modular Building provided it repairs all damage to the remaining
Premises, caps all utilities and restores the site to a level, properly soil compacted, buildable
condition with sod, or seeded topsoil.

Section 163 Reletting. At any time or from time to time after expiration or termination
pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.1 hereof, Landlord may rent the Premises or any part
thereof not then being occupied by any of the above-referenced parties in the name of Landlord or
otherwise for such term or terms (which may be greater or less than the period which would
otherwise have constituted the balance of the Term) and on such conditions as Landlord may
determine and may collect and receive all rental income of and from the Premises.

Section 164 Landlord’s Recovery. In the event of any such expiration or termination by
reason of Tenant’s default, whether or not the Premises or any part thereof shall have been relet,
Tenant shall pay to Landlord and Landlord shall recover from Tenant, the Rent for the entire Term
then in effect reduced, however, to present value using a three percent (3%) discount rate, and all
other charges required to be paid by Tenant, together with all repossession costs, brokerage
commissions, legal expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), and expenses of preparation for
reletting. The Modular Building shall be addressed in the same manner as provided upon surrender
under Section 16.1.

Section 16.5 Landlord Events of Default. If substantial and material default shall be made
by Landlord in the performance of or compliance with any of the material covenants, agreements,
terms, or conditions contained in this Lease, and such default shall continue for a period of thirty
(30) days after written notice thereof from Tenant to Landlord;

Then and in any such event (“Events of Default”) Tenant at any time thereafter during the
continuance of such event or Events of Default may give written notice to Landlord, specifying such
event or Events of Default and stating that this Lease shall terminate on the date specified in such
notice or that Tenant may at its election cure such default at Landlord’s expense, which date shall be
at least forty-five (45) days after the giving of such notice in case of any Event of Default; and upon
the date specified in such notice, this Lease shall terminate unless the Landlord shall have cured
same within said forty-five (45)-day period; (except that in connection with a default not susceptible
of being cured with due diligence within forty-five (45) days, the time of Landlord within which to
cure the same shall be extended for such time as may be necessary to cure the same with all due
diligence, provided Landlord commences promptly and proceeds diligently to cure the same and
further provided that such period of time shall not be so extended as to subject Tenant to any
criminal liability).

16



Section 16.6 Remedies Cumulative. The rights of the Landlord upon default as aforesaid
are cumulative and are in addition to all others allowed at law or in equity, including but not limited
to rights of specific performance.

ARTICLE XVII

Condition of Property: Quiet Enjovment

Section 17.1 No Landlord Warranty. Except as expressly provided in this Lease,
Landlord hereby expressly disclaims any warranties of any nature, expressed or implied, as to the
integrity or suitability of the Premises and any other warranties of any nature, expressed, implied or
otherwise, except as expressly set forth in the Lease. TENANT HEREBY ACCEPTS THE
PREMISES IN “AS IS” CONDITION. Tenant represents that it has made complete inspection of
the Premises and that it has conclusively determined therefrom that the Premises is suitable for
Tenant’s intended use thereof.

Section 17.2 Landlord Representations. Landlord represents and warrants that it has the
power and authority to enter into this Lease and to grant the tenancy hereby created. If and so long
as Tenant pays the Rent and observes and performs all of the covenants, conditions and provisions
on Tenant’s part to be observed and performed hereunder, Tenant shall and may, peaceably and
quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises without interference by Landlord or anyone claiming by,
through or under Landlord, subject to all of the provisions of this Lease. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Tenant understands and acknowledges that there are tenants and uses of property
adjacent to or near the Premises. Landlord shall have no liability for failing to regulate, enforce
regulations against, or prevent interference from such uses and tenants.

ARTICLE XVIII

Surrender of Premises

Section 18.1 Delivery of Possession. Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease,
Tenant shall immediately deliver to Landlord actual possession of the Premises, free and clear of
any and all liens or encumbrances.

Section 18.2 Removal of Buildings and Improvements. Provided Tenant is not in default
at the time of expiration or termination of this Lease, Tenant may, at its option and expense, remove
Tenant’s buildings and improvements; provided, however, the Modular Building must be removed
unless Landlord consents otherwise. Removal of Tenant’s buildings and improvements shall be
concluded not later than the date of termination or expiration and the Premises must be restored to
level, safe and clean condition, reseeded and with all utilities appropriately capped or otherwise
secured, all in accordance with Landlord’s reasonable specifications. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, prior to removing the buildings and improvements, Tenant shall give Landlord thirty (30)
days written notice of its intention to remove the buildings and improvements. Landlord may, at
that time, contact the owner of the modular building Tenant leases from a third party, to discuss
transferring the lease to Landlord or otherwise purchasing the modutar building.

17



Section 183 Non-Removal. If Tenant has not removed the buildings and improvements in
accordance with this Section, then Landlord may at its option, either exercise a right to assume
ownership of the same or any patt thereof, or may have the same or any part thereof removed and
the Premises restored with the reasonable cost thereof due and payable by Tenant.

ARTICLE XIX

Assignment of Tenant’s Interest; Mortgages

Section 19.1 Transfers; Consent. Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of
Landlord which shall not be unreasonably withheld, (i) assign, transfer, mortgage, hypothecate,
or encumber this Lease or any estate or interest herein or in the Premises or buildings or
improvements thereon, whether directly, indirectly or by operation of law, (ii) permit any other
entity to become a Tenant hereunder by merger, consolidation, or other reorganization, (iii) if
Tenant is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, trust,
association or other business entity other than a corporation whose stock is publicly traded,
permit, directly or indirectly, the transfer of any ownership interest in Tenant so as to result in
(A) a change in the current controf of Tenant or (B) a transfer of ten percent (10%) or more in the
aggregate in any twelve (12) month period in the beneficial ownership of such entity, (iv) sublet
any portion of the Premises, (v) grant any license, concession, or other right of occupancy of any
portion of the Premises, or (vi) permit the use of the Premises by any parties other than Tenant
(each of the events listed in this Section 19.1 being a “Transfer”). If Tenant requests Landlord's
consent to any Transfer, then concurrently with such request, Tenant shall provide Landlord with
a written description of all terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer and all consideration
therefor, copies of the proposed documentation, and the following information about the
proposed transferee: name and address; information reasonably satisfactory to Landlord about
the proposed transferee's business and business history; its proposed use of the Premises which
must not deviate from the Lease; banking, financial, and other credit information; and general
references sufficient to enable Landlord to determine the proposed transferee's creditworthiness
and character, [andlord shall not unreasonably withhold consent to any assignment or subletting
of the Premises, provided that without intending to limit the reasons for withholding consent the
parties agree that it shall be reasonable for Landlord to withhold any such consent if Landlord
determines in good faith that (i) the proposed transferee is not of a reasonable financial standing
or is not creditworthy, (ii) the proposed transferee is of a character or reputation which
reasonably may be of concern to existing or prospective tenants at the Airport, (iii) in Landlord’s
judgment, the proposed transferee is of a character or engaged in a business which is not in
keeping with the standards of Landlord for the Airport or which may create an unsuitable tenant
mix at the Airport, or (iv) in Landiord’s reasonable judgment, the proposed transferee would (a)
create increased burdens upon the Airport facilities, (b) cause potential security problems or
additional security concerns at the Airport, or {¢) result in a material increase in Landlord’s
potential liabilities. Landlord may reasonably withhold its consent to all other Transfers in its
reasonable discretion. Any Transfer made without Landlord's consent shall be void and at
Landlord's election, shall constitute an Event of Default by Tenant. Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord immediately upon request for all of its reasonable attorneys' and consultants' fees and
costs incurred in connection with considering any request for consent to a Transfer, provided

I8



Tenant’s reimbursement obligation under this Section 19.1 shall not exceed one (1) month’s rent
for any single Transfer. If Landlord consents to a proposed Transfer, then the proposed
transferee shall deliver to Landlord a written agreement whereby it expressly assumes the
Tenant's obligations hereunder; however, any transferee of less than all of the space in the
Premises shall be liable only for obligations under this Lease that are properly allocable to the
space subject to the Transfer for the period of the Transfer. Landlord's consent to a Transfer
shall not release Tenant from its obligations under this Lease, but rather Tenant and its transferee
shall be jomntly and severally liable therefor. Landlord's consent to any Transfer shall not waive
Landlord's rights as to any subsequent Transfers. If an Event of Default occurs while the
Premises or any part thereof are subject to a Transfer, then Landlord, in addition to its other
remedies, may collect directly from such transferee all rents becoming due to Tenant and apply
such rents against Rent. Tenant authorizes its transferees to make payments of rent directly to
Landlord upon receipt of notice from Landlord to do so.

Section 19.2 Environmental Condition _on_Assignment. As a condition to
consideration of or consent to any Transfer, Landlord may require that Tenant demonstrate
compliance with the provisions of Section 5.7. Such may include Tenant providing at its
expense a Phase 1 Environmental Report (and Phase II Environmental Report, if recommended
by the Phase I) demonstrating compliance to Landlord’s satisfaction.

Section 19.3 Mortgages. [Intentionally Omitted]

ARTICLE XX

Statements, Records, Accounts, and Audit

At any time and from time to time either party to this Lease, on at feast ten (10) days’ prior
written request by the other party to this Lease, shall execute and deliver to the party making such
request a statement in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or
if there shall have been modifications that the same is in full force and effect as modified and stating
the modifications) and the dates to which the Rent and other charges have been paid and stating
whether or not, to the best knowledge of the party executing such certificate, the party requesting
such statement is in default in performance of any covenant, agreement or condition contained in
this Lease and, if so, specifying each such default of which the executing party may have
knowledge.

ARTICLE XX1
Notices

All notices, demands, and requests required under this Lease shall be in writing. All such
notices, demands and requests shall be deemed to have been properly given if served personally, or
by facsimile transmission, private ovemight delivery service or if sent by United States certified
mail, postage prepaid, addressed as hereinafter provided. All such notices, demands and requests
mailed to Landlord shall be addressed to Landiord at_Medina Municipal Airport, 2050 Medina

19



Road, Medina, Ohio 44256, ATTN: Airport Manager, or at such other address (and addressed to
the attention of such officer or other person) as Landlord may from time to time designate by
written notice to Tenant and any mortgagee. All such notices, demands and requests mailed to
Tenant or any of them shall be addressed to Tenant at the Premises. All such notices, demands, and
requests mailed to any mortgagee shall be addressed to such mortgagee at the address fumnished to
Landlord pursuant to the provisions of Section 19.3 hereof, or to such other address as such
mortgagee may from time to time designate by written notice to Landlord.

ARTICLE XXII
Miscellaneous
Section 22.1 Whole Agreement. Anything in this Lease or otherwise to the contrary

notwithstanding, this Lease shall constitute a lease agreement only between Landlord and Tenant
and shall not constitute an agency, partnership, or joint venture, either express or implied.

Section 22.2  Strict Performance. No failure by either party to this Lease to insist upon
the strict performance of any covenant, agreement, term, or condition of this Lease or to exercise
any right or remedy consequent upon a breach thereof, and no acceptance or payment of full or
partial rent during the continuance of any such breach, shall constitute a waiver of any such breach
or of such covenant, agreement, term, or condition. No covenant, agreement, term, or condition of
this Lease to be performed or complied with by either party to this Lease, and no breach thereof,
shall be waived, altered, or modified except by a written instrument executed by the other party to
this Lease. No waiver of any breach shall affect or alter this Lease, but each and every covenant,
agreement, term, and condition of this Lease shall continue in full force and effect with respect to
any other then existing or subsequent breach thereof,

Section 22.3 Memorandum of Lease. [Intentionally Omitted)

Section22.4 Entire Agreement. This Lease contains the entire agreement and
understanding among the parties hereto and shall be deemed to supersede and cancel all other
agreements and understandings, written or oral, entered into prior to the date hereof, relating to the
transactions herein contemplated.

Section 22.5 Captions. The captions of this Lease are for convenience and refarence only
and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of this Lease.

Section 22.6 Invalidity. If any provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease,
or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby; and each provision of this Lease shall
be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 22.7 Governing Law. This Lease and all the terms and provisions hereof shall
be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio, exclusive of choice of
law rules.

20



Section 22.8 Binding Effect. The covenants and agreements herein contained shall bind
and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant, and their respective successots and assigns, except
as otherwise provided herein.

Section 22.9 Time. Time is ofthe essence of this Lease, and of each Section hereof.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

21



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have duly executed this Lease
the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:
CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO
By:
Print Name:
[ts:
STATE OF OHIO )
1SS!
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2024 by , the of CITY OF

MEDINA, a municipal corporation, on behalf of same.

Notary Public

22



TENANT:
UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH

SYSTEM, INC.
By:
Print Name:
Its:
STATE OF OHIO )
)SS:
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, 2024 by , the of

UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC,, an Ohio non-profit corporation, on
behalf of the Ohio non-profit corporation.

Notary Public

23



EXHIBIT “A”

24



91572023, 11:08:44 AM

Farcel Number {Label)
C] Medina Parcels

EXHIBIT A TO UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS HEALTH SYSTEM, INC. GROUND LEASE

ArGl Wb M

p

1:1,128
[ R B A ] 0.02 mi
| R U TR BT SR SR |
| e e S e S B et
Q 0,01 092 0,04 km
Esn G Haps Can E dap, Micrasalt, Ese, HERE,

Garmin, SafeGraph, GaeTachnalogles, Ine, METINASA, USGS, EPA, %P5, US
Census Bureay, USDA

Medina Gounty Auditar's Offca
Madina Gounty Auditor's Ofice, ESRL



SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 3:

RCA 24-191-9/23
ORDINANCE NO. 177-24

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 150-23,
PASSED NOVEMBER 28, 2023. (Amendments to 2024 Budget)

BEIT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No. 190-23, passed November 28, 2023, shall be amended by the
following additions:

Account No./Line Item Additions
001-0101-50111 1,000.00 *
001-0101-51121 150.00 *
001-0101-51126 100.00 *
001-0705-53315 3,756.00 *
106-0101-53313 (donation) 100.00 *
107-0110-53313 7,727.00 *
171-0301-54411 13,872.06

That Ordinance No. 190-23, passed November 28, 2023, shall be amended by the
following reductions:

Account No./Line Item Reductions
171-0743-52214 13,872.06

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law,

That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect at the earliest period allowed by
law.

* - new appropriation

PASSED:

ATTEST:
Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 177-24



WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

SEC. 1:

SEC. 2:

SEC. 3:

SEC. 4:

PASSED:

RCA 24-192-9/23
ORDINANCE NO. 178-24

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 119-24,
PASSED JUNE 10, 2024 RELATIVE TO THE EXPENDITURE
TO ROGUE FITNESS (DBA COULTER VENTURES LLC),
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

Ordinance No. 119-24, passed June 10, 2024, authorized the increase to the
expenditure to Rogue Fitness (dba Coulter Ventures LLC) related to equipment for
the City Hall Fitness Room; and

The City has requested to increase Purchase Order #2024001068 from $37,358.82 to
$37,451.91 (an increase of $93.09).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MEDINA, OHIO:

That Ordinance No. 119-24, passed June 10, 2024, is hereby amended to increase
Purchase Order #2024001068 from $37,358.82 to $37,451.91.

That the funds to cover the increase, in the amount of $93.09, are available in
Account No. 109-0631-53315.

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and
relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this
Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that
resulted in such formal action, were in meetings open to the public, in compliance
with the law.

That this Ordinance shall be considered an emergency measure necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and for the further
reason payment is currently due; wherefore, this Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect immediately upon its passage and signature by the Mayor.

SIGNED:

ATTEST:

President of Council Pro-Tem

APPROVED:

Deputy Clerk of Council

SIGNED:

Acting Mayor

Ord. 178-24



